

# PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR LICENSING AND STANDARDS BOARD

## **Board Bylaws**

Revised June 2025

## **Table of Contents**

About	3
Key Statutes and Rules	3
History	4
PELSB Policies and Procedures	5
Board Meetings	5
Elections	5
Administration	ε
Committees of the Board	7
Duties of Officers	12
Duties of Board Members	12
Board Member Terms	13
Legal Counsel	13
Appendix A: Code of Ethics	15
Purpose	
Policy	15
Appendix B: Reimbursements Policy	18
Purpose	18
Substitute Teacher Reimbursement	18
Per Diem	18

#### **About**

The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board (PELSB) was created by the state legislature in 2017, when the legislature combined the work of the Board of Teaching (BOT) and the Minnesota Department of Education's Licensing Division.<sup>1</sup>

PELSB is governed by a 13-member<sup>2</sup> board and is tasked with:

- Licensing teachers, including related services providers, in Minnesota.<sup>3</sup>
- Establishing and maintaining teacher licensure standards and requirements.<sup>4</sup>
- Establishing and enforcing the Teacher Code of Ethics.<sup>5</sup>
- Approving and overseeing teacher preparation providers and programs to prepare candidates forlicensure in Minnesota.<sup>6</sup>
- Overseeing licensure via portfolio, a non-traditional pathway to a professional license.<sup>7</sup>
- Collecting and sharing data, including teacher licensure and assignments from school districts;<sup>8</sup> enrollment and completion data from teacher preparation programs;<sup>9</sup> and activities and outcomes of grant recipients.<sup>10</sup>
- Administering grants and contracts to support teacher recruitment and retention.<sup>11</sup>

The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board has rulemaking authority.

## **Key Statutes and Rules**

Minn. Stat. 122A (Laws governing teachers and other educators)

Minn. R. chapter 8705 (Rules governing teacher preparation)

Minn. R. chapter 8710 (Rules governing licensure standards and requirements)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Laws of Minnesota 2017, 1st Spec. Sess. chapter 5, article 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> From 2018 to 2023, the Board had 11 board members. The 2023 legislature modified the board membership by removing the HR representative and adding two teacher representatives and one teacher preparation provider representative.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.09, subd. 4 (2021).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.09, subd. 9 (2021).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.09, subd. 1 (2019).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.092 (2019).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Minn. Stat .122A. 18, subd. 10 (2023).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.18, subd. 11 (2023).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.091, subd. 1 (2023).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.635, subd. 4, and Minn. Stat. 122A.70, subd. 6 (2023).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.635 (Collaborative Urban and Greater Minnesota Educators of Color Grant) and 122A.70 (Teacher Mentorship and Retention of Effective Teachers); Laws of Minnesota 2023, chapter 55, article 5, section 65 (Teacher Pathways Grant and the Teacher Recruitment and Marketing Campaign).

## **History**

Since 1976, the Board of Teaching had been responsible for establishing and maintaining licensure standards and requirements for teacher preparation programs and teachers in the state. The Board of Teaching worked with the Minnesota Department of Education's Licensing Division to issue licenses to Minnesota teachers.

During the 2017 First Special Session, the state legislature enacted major reforms to teacher licensure in Minnesota. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board was established, and a tiered licensure system was created. The tiered licensure system includes four tiers of licensure and establishes several different avenues by which an individual can become a licensed teacher. Notably, to obtain a Tier 4 license, which is the highest-tiered license, a candidate must complete an approved teacher preparation program.

In October 2018, PELSB adopted the rules necessary to implement the new tiered teacher licensure system in Minnesota.

During the 2023 Session, the state legislature enacted additional changes to teacher licensure; notably, removing content and pedagogy exams for teachers who have completed a board-approved licensure program or the licensure via portfolio process, as well as the basic skills examination for all teachers seeking a Tier 4 license.

#### **PELSB Policies and Procedures**

#### **Board Meetings**

- I. Time and Location
  - A. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board shall meet regularly at such times and places as the Board shall determine.
  - B. All regularly scheduled, special, and emergency board meetings will be held inperson in the PELSB board room and virtually. Please note, one or more board members may participate virtually. Board meetings shall be in accordance with open meeting laws of Minnesota, Minn.Stat. § 13D.

#### II. Rules of Order

- A. Meetings of the Board shall be conducted according to *Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised In Brief, 3rd Ed.*, unless otherwise stated.
- B. The chair shall appoint a parliamentarian at each July meeting of the Board. The parliamentarian must attend all Executive Committee meetings unless this attendance leads to a quorum of board members present.
- C. A quorum of the Board must be present for any votes. Said quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the total membership of the Board.
- D. Reports, recommendations, and supplemental materials will be provided to the Board members in advance of the meetings. The Board shall not be expected to take official action on reports or recommendations without sufficient time for discussion and preparation. As a general practice, the Board will take official action no earlier than one meeting after hearing a report.

#### **Elections**

- I. The Board shall annually elect two officers: Chair and Vice-Chair.
- II. The Board shall annually elect an Executive Committee which will be composed of the officers elected and two additional members.
- III. The Board shall follow the timeline below:
  - During the Board's regularly scheduled May meeting each year, members will hold a
    public discussion about nominations for the Chair, Vice Chair, and Executive Committee
    positions. Board staff will then accept nominations for Board officers and Executive
    Committee.
  - 2. Board staff will present a slate of candidates for consideration at the June meeting. These individuals, in addition to any individuals nominated up until the time of balloting, will serve as the slate of candidates.
  - 3. Elections shall take place at the June meeting of the Board.

- 4. Officers shall be elected for a term of one year and shall assume office in July following the June election.
- 5. The term of office shall be from July 1 through June 30.
- 6. Officers may succeed themselves in office.
- 7. Elections shall be by written ballot unless otherwise determined by the Board. The votes of each member shall be announced following the written ballot. In accordance with Minn. Stat. § 13D.01, Subp. 4, the results of elections must be published in Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board minutes.
- IV. The following procedures will be used during June elections:
  - 1. Board staff will present the slate of candidates for the positions of:
    - a. Chair
    - b. Vice-Chair
    - c. Two additional members for the Executive Committee
  - 2. An opportunity for additional nominations will be provided at the meeting.
  - 3. An opportunity will be provided for each candidate to address the Board prior to the ballot.
  - 4. Balloting will be done in accordance with III (7) above. Board members will first vote forthe position of Chair. Members will then vote for the position of Vice-Chair. The third vote will be for the two remaining positions on the Executive Committee.
  - 5. Staff will announce the results and the new members will assume their new duties on July 1.

Note: All candidates for the Chair and Vice-Chair positions will automatically be included on the list of candidates for the Executive Committee, pending the individual candidate's preference. As candidates are selected for the Chair and Vice-Chair positions, their names will be withdrawn from the list of candidates for the Executive Committee.

#### **Administration**

- . The Executive Director of the Board shall be the chief administrative officer for the Board and serve as ex officio non-voting member. <sup>12</sup> The Executive Director shall maintain the records of the Board, account for all fees received by the Board, supervise and direct employees servicing the Board, and perform other services as directed by the Board.
- II. The Department of Administration must provide administrative support in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 16B.371. The commissioner of administration must assess the Board for services it provides under this section.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Minn. Stat. 07, subd. 4a.

#### **Committees of the Board**

- The Board shall have the following standing committees: Executive, Legislative, Licensing, Teacher Preparation, Educator Ethics, and Increase Educators of Color and Indigenous Educators.
- II. At the June Board meeting, committee appointments will be discussed, with the exception of the Executive Committee, and Board members will identify areas of interest and expertise. Committee appointments shall be made by the chair in July each year and shall run from the time of appointment until the time of new appointments the following year. The chair must appoint a minimum of 3 members to each committee.
- III. Committee members may elect the committee chair at their first meeting.
- IV. Committee meetings shall be called at a time and place to be determined by the committee chair, when applicable, and in consultation with the Board Chair. A notice of time, place, and agenda is prepared and distributed by the Executive Director in consultation with the committee chair. If a committee does not have a designated chair, meeting times and places shall be determined through consultation with committee members and Board staff. All committee meetings will be noticed to the public in accordance with open meeting laws of Minnesota, Minn. Stat. § 13D.04.
- V. Committee chairs shall report to the Board at regular monthly meetings as appropriate.
- VI. Each committee shall review its committee membership structure and duties at least annually and prepare recommendations for the Executive Committee about potential changes to the Board's Bylaws.
- VII. Meetings of the standing committees shall be intended for discussion of major issues related to the task assigned to the committee. It shall be the responsibility of each committee to attend to the specific task assigned by the Board.
- VIII. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board staff is to provide assistance at committee meetings. Staff attending committee meetings are responsible for summarizing committee meetings, if requested by the committee. Staff shall also draft language to reflect the general consensus of discussions as needed during standing committee meetings for reactions from the committee.
  - IX. The purpose, structure, and duties of the standing committees shall be as follows:

#### A. Executive Committee

- 1. The Board shall annually elect an Executive Committee which will be composed of the officers elected and additional two additional members.
- 2. The duties shall be as follows:
  - a. To serve as a steering committee for conducting Board business and setting meeting agendas.
  - b. To serve as an advisory committee to the Executive Director of the Board in

the implementation of Board policies.

- c. On a yearly basis, the Executive Committee will initiate a performance review of the Executive Director in alignment with required state performance reviews and compensation increase schedules using performance standards and performance indicators; the serving Vice-Chair when the performance review is initiated will facilitate the review, provide results in a closed session to the Board, followed by acceptance of the report in the public meeting.
- d. Review cases where a board member has failed to fulfill required duties as outlined in the bylaws and determine whether removal is recommended.

#### B. Legislative Committee

The duties shall be as follows:

- a. To keep the Board informed of legislation, existing and proposed, which affects or may affect the Board.
- b. To develop strategies for implementation of legislative initiatives.
- c. To offer testimony to appropriate committees of the legislature regarding proposed legislation pertaining to the Board.
- d. To assist the Chair and Executive Director in necessary contacts with the governor and/or staff, with legislators and legislative staff, and with other community partners.
- e. To propose legislative action and positions to the full Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board.
- f. During the legislative session, the Executive Director will provide members with ongoing summaries and updates of legislative activity, historical context and Board input, and recommend possible responses, positions, and alternatives for consideration.

#### C. Licensing Committee

The duties shall be as follows:

- a. Review all licensure applications with possible denial or issuance of a license other than the license an applicant desired. The applications will be brought by the Internal Licensing Group comprised of Board staff. This includes flagged Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 3, Tier 4, renewal applications, and Out-of-Field permission requests; discretionary variances; any application requiring justification reviewed by the Board; Cross Curricular Delivery Permission requests, including verification of innovative program delivery model applications; and any other applications as needed.
- b. Upon receipt of an application, make decision to issue or deny the license, permission, or discretionary variance.
- c. If a license is denied, the Committee must inform the applicant the reason

- for the denial (i.e., identify each licensure requirement the applicant failed to meet) and inform the individual of the process for seeking review of the denial and the appeals process, including applicable deadlines.
- d. Represent the Licensure Committee recommendation before the Board following an appeal to the Office of Administrative Hearings.
- e. Work with the Licensure Committee support staff of the Board for all contested case hearings.
- f. Approve professional certifications for career pathways and Career and Technical Education licensure.
- g. Approve credential evaluation services for applicants who completed a baccalaureate degree outside of the United States pursuant to Minnesota Rules 8710.0311, subpart 2; 8710.0313, subpart 2; 8710.0313, subpart 2; 8710.0325, subpart 2; and 8710.0330, subpart 3.
- h. Approve national certifications in lieu of clock hours for teachers and related service providers seeking to renew their Tier 3 or Tier 4 license pursuant to Minnesota Rules 8710.7200, subpart 5.

#### D. Teacher Preparation Committee

- The Chair shall appoint members to serve as Teacher Preparation Committee members, including at least one of the two representatives serving as the teacher from a teacher preparation program.
- 2. The duties shall be as follows:
  - a. Review unit review team recommendations submitted to the Board upon the completion of a unit site visit and make recommendations to the Board regarding whether to adopt the review team's recommendation for unit approval or to take a different action.
  - b. Review Unit Reports on Continuous Improvement that have been flagged by staff or review teams and determine whether any issues should be brought to the Board for further action.
  - c. Review interim reports submitted to the Board as part of unit approval process and make recommendations to the Board regarding whether Board action should be taken.
  - d. Review discretionary variances submitted to the Board regarding unit standards and unit approval and make recommendations to the Board regarding whether the discretionary variance should be approved or denied, and if approved, whether certain conditions should be established.
  - e. Review Program Review Panel (PRP) recommendations for program approval and make recommendation to the Board regarding whether to adopt the

PRP's recommendation or take a different action.

- f. Review discretionary variances submitted to the Board regarding program standards and program approval and make recommendations to the Board regarding whether the discretionary variance should be approved or denied, and if approved, whether certain conditions should be established.
- g. Support Teacher Education Specialists in the evaluation of internal practices and procedures.

#### E. Educator Ethics Committee

The duties shall be as follows:

- a. For licensed teachers:
  - i. Review complaints and results of investigations alleging or implying a violation of a statute or rule which the Board is empowered to enforce.
  - ii. Make recommendations regarding whether to pursue discipline against an individual's teaching license(s).
  - iii. Work with the Board's Teacher Ethics Specialist on contested case hearings, as needed.
- b. For license applicants:
  - i. Review applications for possible issuance or denial based on statute and rule which the Board is empowered to enforce.
  - ii. Make decisions to issue or deny a license.
  - iii. Work with the Board's Teacher Ethics Specialist on contested case hearings, as needed.
- F. Increase Educators of Color and Indigenous Educators Committee

The duties shall be as follows:

- Host regular meetings that facilitate community partner input on the obstacles and opportunities related to increasing educator diversity in Minnesota.
- b. Help develop Board definitions and statements related to culturally responsive pedagogy, teacher diversity, and educational equity.
- c. Research and recommend policies and strategies to the Board that would help increase the number of educators of color and Indigenous educators in Minnesota, including possible changes to state law and/or rules.
- d. Build partnerships with other state agencies and organizations to collective work towards the Board goal of increasing educators of color and Indigenous educators.
- e. Upon request, review Cultural Competency Trainings offered to

#### Minnesota's educators.

- X. The Board shall have one standing advisory committee, called the Standards and Rules Advisory Committee.
  - A. Membership will be determined by the Executive Committee\_based on representation of constituent groups. The Executive Director or designee will function as the chair of the committee.
  - B. The Standards and Rules Advisory Committee shall provide:
    - Ongoing feedback on Board initiatives to ensure that Board policy considerations and actions reflect the perspectives of multiple community partner organizations.
    - 2. Input and recommendations on specific policy issues as requested by the Board, including ongoing monitoring of Board-adopted licensure tests.
    - 3. A forum for identifying additional issues for consideration by the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board.
  - C. The structure of the Standards and Rules Advisory Committee shall follow the guidelines below:
    - 1. The agenda should set prior to a Standards and Rules Advisory Committee meeting by the Executive Director in consultation with Board Staff.
    - 2. The Standards and Rules Advisory Committee will hold a minimum of four meetings annually.
    - 3. The Executive Director or their designee shall facilitate the meeting.
    - 4. The Standards and Rules Advisory Committee may form an ad hoc committee to do work when necessary.
    - A Board member or designee attending the Standards and Rules Advisory
       Committee meeting will present a report to the full Board at the next monthly
       meeting.
- XI. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board shall establish subcommittees as needed.
  - A. In establishing a subcommittee, the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board shall state the charge or purpose of the committee, objectives, proposed timeline, and membership of the committee, including Board facilitator.
  - B. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board shall receive regular updates on the work of a subcommittee prior to receiving recommendations for action.
  - C. The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board reserves the right to modify or not act on any recommendations brought forward by a subcommittee.
  - D. Subcommittees will be reviewed every January.

#### **Duties of Officers**

#### I. Chair

- A. Review and approve the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with the Executive Director and Executive Committee.
- B. Call meetings of the Board according to the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 122A.09.
- C. Chair each meeting of the Board and attend public hearings held by the Board.
- D. Consult with the Executive Director in preparation for Boardmeetings, committee meetings, and other Board business.
- E. Appoint committees and liaisons as needed to conduct Boardbusiness.
- F. Serve as a spokesperson for the Board.
- G. In emergency situations and in consultation with the Executive Director, the Chair can make decisions and provide an opinion on behalf of the full Board.

#### II. Vice-Chair

- A. Assume the duties of the Chair when necessary.
- B. Assist the Chair in representing the Board.
- C. Perform other related Board duties as requested by the Chair.
- D. Facilitate the annual performance evaluation process for the Executive Director.

#### **Duties of Board Members**

- I. Attend all regular and special meetings of the Board. If a board member misses three consecutive regular meetings, this constitutes cause for removal from the Board, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 214.09, subdivision 4.
- II. Follow the Code of Ethics. (Appendix A)
- III. Keep informed of Board goals, initiatives, and activities.
- IV. Review all Board materials received prior to each meeting.
- V. Inform the Chair and Executive Director within one week after accepting a new professional position or change in employment status.
- VI. Serve on Board committees.
- VII. Inform Board staff when planning on attending committee meetings beyond committee assignments so staff can properly notice meetings to the public.
- VIII. Attend special meetings, legislative and Board hearings, liaison functions, and professional meetings as much as possible.
- IX. Make a concerted effort to participate in Board work, such as unit site visits and grant review.

- X. Serve in a liaison role to task forces and ad hoc committees called by the Board as directed by the Chair.
- XI. Perform the following responsibilities when serving as chair of a Board committee or as a liaison to task forces and ad hoc committees called by the Board:
  - A. Attend meetings of the committee or task force, making sure that members understand their charge(s) and that members function in accordance with Board philosophy, intent, and guidelines.
  - B. Keep the Board informed monthly of progress made by the committee or task force.
  - C. Bring to the Board questions and concerns raised at committee or task force meetings.
  - D. Serve as a resource to both the Board and the committee or task force.
- XII. Failure to complete duties identified in the Bylaws may constitute cause for removal from the Board after a review by the Executive Committee.

#### XIII. New members:

- A. New Board members will be assigned a mentor who shall be a Board member with at least one full year of experience on the Board. The mentor will make regular contact with the new member to provide support and answer questions about Board procedures, policies, or agenda items.
- B. The Executive Director will provide an initial orientation session for new members within the first three months on the Board.
- C. The Board's ethics attorney will provide a legal orientation for new board members.

#### **Board Member Terms**

- I. **General terms**. Board member terms are governed by Minnesota Statues 214.09.
- II. **Appointments**. Board members are appointed for four-year terms with terms ending on the first Monday in January. All board members may serve two terms, except for the board member filling the principal seat, who is limited to a single full term. Board members may serve until their successors are appointed and qualify.
- III. Vacancies. In the case of a vacancy on the Board, the Governor shall appoint a person to fill the remainder of the unexpired term. The member filling the vacancy is able to be reappointed for a full four-year term.

#### **Legal Counsel**

The legal and investigative services for the boards shall be provided by employees of the Attorney General assigned to the departments servicing the boards.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Attorney General shall not be precluded by this section from

assigning other attorneys to service a board if necessary, in order to ensure competent and consistentlegal representation. Persons providing legal and investigative services shall to the extent practicable provide the services on a regular basis to the same board or boards.

## **Appendix A: Code of Ethics**

#### **Purpose**

The purpose of this policy is to assist each board member in understanding their role as part of the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board and in recognizing the contribution that each member must make to develop an effective and responsible board.

#### **Policy**

Each board member shall follow the code of ethics stated in this policy.

- A. As a member of the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board, I will:
  - 1. Attend board meetings and assigned committee meetings, having prepared for discussion of the agenda items.
  - 2. Respect the opinions and views of others (including, but not limited to, other board members, staff, and community partners).
  - 3. Vote my conscience after informed discussion, unless I abstain because a conflict of interest exists.
  - 4. Recognize that decisions are made by a majority vote and the outcome should be supported by all board members.
  - 5. Recognize the integrity of previous board members and staff and appreciate their decisions and work.
  - 6. Inform myself about the proper duties and functions of a board member.
  - 7. Be motivated by a desire to ensure all Minnesota students have high quality educators in their schools.
  - 8. Respect the right of the public to be informed about Board decisions and operations.
- B. In performing the proper functions of a board member, I will:
  - 1. Focus my attention on fulfilling the Board's responsibilities of goal setting, policy making, and evaluation.
  - 2. Consider myself a trustee of public education and do my best to protect, conserve, and advance its progress.
  - 3. Work collaboratively with the Executive Director.
  - 4. Delegate the implementation of board decisions to the Executive Director.
  - 5. Work to ensure prudent and accountable use of Board resources.

- C. To maintain relations with other members of the Board, I will:
  - 1. Respect the rights of others to have and express opinions.
  - 2. Recognize that authority rests with the board—not with the individual members of the Board except as authorized by law.
  - 3. Make no disparaging remarks, in or out of board meetings, about other members of the board or their opinions.
  - 4. Keep an open mind about how I will vote on any proposition until the Board has met and fully discussed the issue.
  - 5. Make decisions by voting in board meetings after all sides of debatable questions have been presented.
  - 6. Maintain a professional level of courtesy, respect, and objectivity in all Board activities.
- D. In working with the Board's Executive Director and staff, I will:
  - 1. Hold the Executive Director responsible for the administration of the Board and conduct an evaluation of the Executive Director annually.
  - 2. Give the Executive Director authority commensurate with his or her responsibilities.
  - 3. Assure that the Board will be administered by the best professional personnel available.
  - 4. Participate in board action after considering the recommendation of the Executive Director and only after the Executive Director has furnished adequate information supporting the recommendation.
  - 5. Insist the Executive Director keep the Board adequately informed at all times.
  - 6. Offer the Executive Director counsel and advice.
  - 7. Refer all complaints to the proper administrative officer or insist that they be presented in writing to the whole board for proper referral according to the chain of command.
  - 8. Respect the work and opinions of staff and support the employment of those best qualified to serve as staff.
  - 9. Present any personal criticisms of staff to the Executive Director.
  - 10. Provide support for the Executive Director and staff so they may perform their proper functions on a professional level.
  - 11. Inform Board staff when planning on attending committee meetings and board events beyond committee assignments so staff can properly notice meetings to the public.
  - 12. Inform the Chair and Executive Director within one week after accepting a new professional position or change in employment status.

E. In fulfilling my legal obligations as a board member, I will:

- 1. Comply with all federal, state, and local laws relating to my work as a board member.
- 2. Comply with all policies as adopted by the Board.
- 3. Avoid conflicts of interest and refrain from using my board position for personal gain.
- 4. Take no private action that will compromise the Board.
- 5. Maintain the confidentiality of information that is protected by law.
- 6. Comply with applicable professional code of ethics, such as the Minnesota Code of Ethics for Teachers or the Minnesota Code of Ethics for School Administrators.

## **Appendix B: Reimbursements Policy**

#### **Purpose**

The purpose of this policy and procedure statement is to establish the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board policy with respect to activities for which Board members will be reimbursed for time spent by Board members on Board business as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 15.0575; 122A.07, subd. 4 and 5; and 214.09, subd. 3.

#### Substitute Teacher Reimbursement<sup>13</sup>

The Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board must reimburse local school districts for the costs of substitute teachers employed when regular teachers are providing professional assistance to the state by serving on the board or on a committee or task force appointed by the board and charged to make recommendations concerning standards for teacher licensure in this state.

Substitute teacher reimbursements for Boardmembers, who serve as classroom teachers, may be paid for:

- Attending Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board meetings
- Attending Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board Committee meetings as a member of the committee or at the request of the Board chair
- Representing the Board as a member of a task force or advisory committee
- Attending a meeting or conference on behalf of the Board and at the request of the Board chair
- Presentation at a legislative hearing on behalf of the Board and at the request of the Board chair

It is the responsibility of the individual Board member to request the substitute teacher reimbursement in accordance with this policy using the form provided by the Board office. Reimbursement requests must follow current IRS requirements in order to be paid. Substitute teacher reimbursement may be either for a half day or a full day. Board members may request Per Diem or Substitute Reimbursement, but not both.

#### Per Diem<sup>14</sup>

Board may be compensated at the rate of \$55 a day spent on board activities, when authorized by the Board. Members who, as a result of time spent attending board meetings, incur child care expenses that would not otherwise have been incurred, may be reimbursed for those expenses upon board authorization.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.07, subdivision 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Minn. Stat. 15.0575, subpart 3.

#### Mileage Reimbursement

A Board member may be reimbursed for mileage at the current Federal IRS reimbursement rate on the most direct route according to Transportation Department records. A map may be requested from the Dept. of Administration as support.

#### **Meal Reimbursement**

Board members may be reimbursed for the cost of meals including tax and a reasonable gratuity based on annual per diem allocations set by the U.S. General Services Administration (GSA). Breakfast reimbursement may be claimed only if the Board member is in travel status overnight or departs from home for the meeting before 6:00 A.M. Dinner reimbursement may be claimed only if the Board member is in travel status overnight or is required to remain in travel status until after 7:00 P.M.

#### **Lodging Reimbursement**

Board members may be reimbursed for the cost of lodging for the purpose of attending Board meetings or other Board functions based on annual per diem allocations set by the U.S. General Services Administration (GSA). With the exception of lodging to attend monthly Board meetings, lodging expenses must have prior approval from the Board chair.

#### Stipend<sup>15</sup>

Board members shall receive a stipend of up to \$4,800 annually, prorated monthly, during each year of service on the board.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Minn. Stat. 122A.07, subd. 4, paragraph (b) (2023).

## **Appendix C: Legislative Priorities**

#### **BACKGROUND**

Since the establishment of Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board (PELSB) in 2018, the Board has brought forward a legislative platform and advocated for policies in an effort to ensure Minnesota students have high quality educators in their schools.

#### **REMOVING BARRIERS TO LICENSURE:**

- Eliminate Basic Skills Exam requirements for teachers seeking a Tier 4 license (2020, 2021, 2022, 2023)
- Eliminate content and pedagogy exam requirements for teachers who completed teacher preparation in Minnesota or who completed teacher preparation and passed licensure exams in another state (2022, 2023)
- Allow performance assessment (i.e., edTPA) in place of pedagogical exam for teachers seeking a
  Tier 3 license who have not complete teacher preparation (2019, 2020, 2021, 2023)
- Expand exemptions from a bachelor's degree to include native speakers of a world language and visual and performing artists (2021, 2022)
- Provide funding and support to educators seeking a license in their heritage language (2023)

#### **MEET THE NEEDS OF MN STUDENTS:**

- Bring Minnesota into compliance under Part B of the IDEA (2024)
- Literacy training and mentorship (2024)
- Support teachers to obtain licensure in shortages areas, such as special education (2024)
- Support increased funding, programs, and reporting to help recruit and retain teachers of color (2025)
  - CUGMEC
  - Teacher Mentorship & Retention of Effective Teachers
  - Paid student teaching
- Support funding and programs to support teachers in shortage areas (2025)

#### **ELEVATING THE PROFESSION**

- Remove the Tier 2 to Tier 3 pathway based on three years of teaching experience (2021, 2022, 2023)
- Strengthen Tier 2 requirements to align with content expertise or enrollment in a teacher preparation program (2021, 2022)
- Add mentorship requirements for teachers holding a Tier 1 or Tier 2 license (2021, 2022)
- Additional pathways to Tier 4 portfolio and national board certification (2024)
- Aligning district TDE with SEPs (2024)
- Support residency programs (2023)
- Support increased educator compensation (2024)
- Support paid student teaching (2024)
- Support bills that seek to make teaching the prestigious, desirable, financially viable, and professionally exciting job that we all know it needs to be to recruit and retain diverse and excellent teachers (2025)
- Support bills that seek to increase opportunities and supports for educators that will translate to improved academic outcomes for multilingual learners (2025)
- Support residency programs (2025)
- Support increased educator compensation (2025)
- Support paid student teaching (2025)

#### **OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE:**

- Increase number of board members (2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023)
- Increase licensure fee from \$57 to \$85 and add a nominal fee to support IT costs (2021)
- Remove redundant district reports (2020, 2021, 2022, 2023)
- Clarify definitions and processes (2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023)
- Support BOSA taking on licensing duties (2024)
- IT budget to complete licensure system (2024)
- Clarify data collection and reporting responsibilities (2024)
- Allow BIE schools to access the Teacher Mentorship Grant (2024)
- Support literacy supports including funding, clinical experience, and coaching (2024)
- BOSA funding to support processing of administrative licenses by BOSA (2025)

- Transfer grantmaking duties to MDE (2025)
- Transfer responsibility to administer the paraprofessional credential to MDE (2025)
- Ensure PELSB can accommodate increased costs associated with living adjustments, step increases for staff, and increased reviewer costs (2025)
- Support funding and programs to support teachers in shortage areas (e.g. portfolio cohorts, heritage language pathways programs) (2025)
- Ensure PELSB has funding for MN.IT maintenance costs (2025)

#### **RENEWAL:**

- One-time renewal requirements for teachers holding their initial Tier 3 license (2022)
- Ensure training in cultural competency and meeting the needs of multilingual learners is required for all teachers (2019, 2020, 2021, 2022)
- Eliminate outdated references to licensure exams (2025)
- Remove the requirement to attempt a content exam for teachers seeking to renew a Tier 1 license (2025)
- Remove redundant reporting requirements (2025):
  - Minn. Stat. 122A.092, subd. 2. paragraph 4. The [PELSB] will report annually to the
    education committees of the legislature on the performance of teacher candidates on
    core assessments of knowledge and skills under this clause during the most recent school
    year.